

# Creating Community for Kids since 1981!

# PATRON HANDBOOK

# 2024-2025

# Contents

Vision, Mission and Values/Guiding Principles			
Organization	4		
STARS (Standards, Training, Assistance, Resources and Support) and CQI	4		
Hours and Holidays	5		
Enrollment	5		
Arrival and Departure Policies/Authorization to Pick up Child	5		
Children's Records	5		
Tuition & Fees- 2023-24 School Year Error! Bookmark not	defined.		
Tuition Express	6		
Late Pick-up Charge	7		
Returned Payment Charges	7		
Sick days	7		
Vacations	7		
Extended Absences	8		
Our Classes	8		
Infant and Toddler Classes	8		
Preschool Classes	8		
Elementary Classes	11		
Naptime	11		
Food Program/CACFP	11		
Family Communication	12		
Assessments/Evaluations	12		
Community Resources	12		
Diapering and Potty Training	12		
Emergencies	13		
Staff Training and Clearances	13		
Our Policies	14		
Pictures and Videos	14		
Television, Video and Computer Policy	14		
Policies Concerning Child Custody	14		
Policy on Toys	14		
Policy on Behavior, Suspension and Expulsion	14		
Inclusion Policy	15		

Policy on Diversity	16
Shaken Baby Syndrome (Abusive Head Trauma) Prevention Policy	16
Ilness Policy	17
Policies on Reporting and Preventing Injuries	17
Parent Behavior Policy	17
Transition Plan	
Program information	19
nsurance	
Discrimination	20



Creating Community for Kids since 1981!

#### Vision, Mission and Values/Guiding Principles

We envision a community where working parents are supported, children reach their full potential, and education is individualized to meet the needs of every child.

Our mission is to support the individual needs of every child and to provide quality care and education for children in the New Holland area.

Values/Guiding Principles- \*Grace \*Wholeness \*Diversity \*Inclusivity \*Compassion

- Grace: Following Jesus' examples, we will demonstrate God's grace and love
- Wholeness: Educating the whole child: spiritually, physically and emotionally
- Diversity: Introducing children to a broad variety of cultures, languages and people
- Inclusivity: Welcoming children and families with diverse needs
- Compassion: Walking with families through all aspects of life, as Jesus calls us to do.

#### Organization

New Holland Early Learning Center is a non-profit program and ministry of the New Holland Mennonite Church. A Governing Board oversees the work of the New Holland Early Learning Center. The board is made up of members of the New Holland Mennonite Church, patrons of the New Holland Early Learning Center and interested community members. If you have a concern please feel free to talk to your child's teacher, the office staff, the Pastor or a board member.

We are licensed by the Pennsylvania Department of Human Services. Our license is posted by the main entrance.

# STARS (Standards, Training, Assistance, Resources and Support) and CQI

We actively participate in the Keystone Stars, a Pennsylvania initiative to improve, support and recognize the Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) efforts of Early Childhood Education. In January 2021 we earned a STAR 4, the highest level of continuous quality improvement. Star levels are based upon: Staff Education, Learning Environment, Leadership and Management, and Family and Community Partnerships. Teachers use the Pennsylvania Early Learning Standards and the Creative Curriculum in their classroom planning.

# **Hours and Holidays**

The New Holland Early Learning Center is open between the hours of 6:15 am and 5:30 pm, Monday through Friday. The center will be closed on the following holidays: Labor Day, Indigenous Peoples/Columbus Day, Thanksgiving Day, Black Friday, Christmas, the week between Christmas and New Year's Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, July 4<sup>th</sup> and August 19th. If a holiday falls on a Saturday we will be closed on the preceding Friday. If it falls on a Sunday, the Center will be closed on the following Monday. The center closes at 3:00 pm on Christmas Eve. Regular fees will be charged for all patrons on holiday weeks with the exception of the week between Christmas and New Year's Day.

# Enrollment

At the time of enrollment, various forms need to be completed to satisfy both the Department of Human Services and the Early Learning Center Board. They include: Child care application, Agreement, Tuition Express paperwork, getting to know you information, and the Child and Adult Care Food Program Forms. A child Health Assessment must be completed by a doctor and returned within 30 days of enrollment. Also due at enrollment is a non-refundable \$25 enrollment fee per child or \$50 per family along with a one-week security deposit. The first week tuition is deducted from your account the Friday before your child's first day. Tuition will subsequently be charged weekly or monthly ahead of service, based upon your agreed upon payment plan. All tuition will be paid ahead of services. Late fees and after hours' fees will be charged with the following payment. **All paperwork and fees are due one week before the first day of enrollment**. Reenrollment occurs every fall prior to the first day of the school year. All paperwork must be renewed at that time and the annual enrollment fee of \$25 per child or \$50 per family paid. **All account balances must be current for students to be eligible for the fall re-enrollment.** Children may discontinue enrollment at any time, with written notification to the office 2 weeks in advance. Failure to inform the office 2 weeks in advance will result in the loss of the patron deposit.

# Arrival and Departure Policies/Authorization to Pick up Child

Each Day upon arrival and departure, please check in/out using the keypad by the office. All persons picking up your child must be on your approved pick-up list. Please carry photo identification with you when you pick up your child and make sure anyone else picking up your child at any time has photo identification with them. It is our policy to ask for photo identification before releasing a child to someone we do not know. This policy is to insure the safety of your child.

# **Children's Records**

In addition to the enrollment paperwork the following papers need to be updated on a yearly basis; Childcare Application and CACFP paperwork. The Childcare Agreement needs to be updated every 6 months and the Child Health Assessment form at the following ages: 2 months, 4 months, 6 months, 9 months, 12 months, 15 months, 18 months, 24 months, 3 years, 4 years, 5 years, 6 years, and 8 years. The office staff will work with families on updating this information at the appropriate times.

	2024-2025 School Year		
Full-time (46 hours w	eekly)		
Part-time (charged da	ily) (Full Day- 9 hours) (Half day- 4 1/2 hours)		
Part-time infant acce	oted only if older sibling attends		
-	14 (Applied anytime you go over the hours your nor	nal tuition o	overs
	Classroom Charges		
Grasshopper/Bumb	lebee/Ladybug Classes (Infant/Toddler)		
Full-time		\$300.00	
Daily		\$70.00	
		,	
Dragonfly/Firefly Clas	ses (Preschool)		
Full-time		\$265.00	
Part-time- Full Day		\$65.00	
Part-time- Half Day		\$40.00	
Dragonfly (Not Potty <sup>-</sup>	Frained)		
Full-time		\$290.00	
Part-time- Full Day		\$70.00	
Part-time- Half Day		\$45.00	
PreK Counts Wrap Arc	ound	\$7.00	/hr
Katydid/Cicada Clas	ses (Before and After School-Age)		
• • •	ncludes snow and in-service days)	\$120.00	/wk
Full time (10 hours)		\$85.00	/wk
Up to 2 hours	Additional day	* \$17.00	/day
In-Service and Snow [	Days	\$65.00	/day
Discovery Club (Sch	ool Age Summer Program)		
Full Time (46 hours)		\$280.00	/wk
Per day (9 hours*)		\$70.00	/day
		<i>ç</i> , 0.00	, ady
-	ck up after 5:30pm)		
Up to 15 min		\$35.00	
16 to 30 min		\$45.00	
31 to 45 min		\$55.00	
46 to 60 min		\$80.00	

Sibling Discount - Youngest child pays full tuition, discount is 15% on the oldest child and 10

6 | P a g e Sibling Discount. Yourgest shill an a fully start of the s Sibling Discount- Youngest child pays full tuition, all other children 10% discount.

# **Tuition Express**

All patrons are expected to participate in Tuition Express. You may choose to connect this to a credit/debit card or to your checking account and to have it deducted weekly or monthly on Fridays. These payments are due the Friday prior to attendance. Any other arrangements need to be approved by the Director. Any late pickup fees or extended time fees will be automatically deducted the Friday of the week after they are incurred. If we have your email on file, you will receive a copy of your statement each Thursday.

#### Late Pick-up Charge

We close promptly at 5:30 pm. Any child who is picked up after 5:30pm. will be charged a late pick-up fee. If we cannot contact a parent or emergency contact by 6:30pm we will need to notify the New Holland Police. Please be sure to have emergency phone numbers where someone can be reached. If a child is picked up after hours three or more times in a 6-month period, they may lose their spot in our program.

Late Pick Up Fee (Pick	up after 5:30pm)
Up to 15 min	\$35.00
16 to 30 min	\$45.00
31 to 45 min	\$55.00
46 to 60 min	\$80.00

#### **Returned Payment Charges**

If a Tuition Express payment is declined, the account will be charged a return payment fee. It is the responsibility of the primary payer to inform the office if a bankcard is expired, a new bankcard has been issued or an account has been closed and to provide updated payment information. If a check is returned for insufficient funds a returned check fee will be applied to the account. All fees are due on the following scheduled payment date.

Returned/Declined Payment Fee Debit/Credit Card/ACH payment Bounced Check

\$3.50 priced according to what the bank charges

#### Sick days

If a child is sick for 5 consecutive school days or one week, 50% of the weekly fee will be credited. In order to receive the credit, you must contact the office at time of absence. If your child is out fewer than 5 consecutive days, no compensation will be given. Please call the office if your child will not be in class due to an illness. If your child is out due to an illness for 3 more consecutive days, a doctor's note must be given to the office approving their return.

#### Vacations

Children are allowed two weeks' vacation free of charge per year (<u>after 6 full months of enrollment</u>). Vacations are to be taken in one/two week blocks with two weeks written notification to the office. A maximum of two weeks' vacation credit may be taken at any one time. Vacations may not be carried over from one year to the next.

# **Extended Absences**

A Deposit equal to one week's tuition is required to hold a child's spot in the event of an extended absence. All arrangements including length of time and spot to be held must be approved through the director.

# **Our Classes**

New Holland Early Learning Center serves children 6 weeks through 4<sup>th</sup> grade. Each classroom strives to meet the needs of the children in their care by offering them activities that enhance their learning through play and educational experiences. We use the Creative Curriculum for Lesson Planning and Teaching Strategies to assess the children throughout the year. Ages and Stages is used for a 30-day initial assessment in each classroom. We offer the following programs.

# Infant and Toddler Classes

**Grasshoppers** - Our Grasshopper class serves children 6 weeks until they are ready for our more advanced Bumblebee class. In order to move to the Bumblebees children must be at least 13 months old, walking, eating solid foods, using a sippy cup and be ready to nap one time during the day. Parents should supply the following in the Grasshopper class: Bottles and Sippy cup, multiple changes of clothing, pacifier (if needed), diapers if not using the centers and formula or breast milk if not using Similac Advanced.

**Bumblebees** - Our Bumblebee class serves children that are 13 months to two years old. Parents should supply a sippy cup, multiple changes of clothing, a helmet for riding trikes and bikes, a blanket for rest time and diapers if not using the centers. Children should wear appropriate clothing and footwear for outdoor play. We play outside year-round above 25 degrees Fahrenheit and under 90 degrees Fahrenheit. Parents should check their child's mailbox on a daily basis.

**Ladybugs** - Our Ladybug class serves children that are two to three years old. Parents should supply a sippy cup, multiple changes of clothing, a helmet for riding trikes and bikes, a blanket for rest time and diapers or pull-ups if not using the centers. This is the primary classroom for potty training. Please let the teachers know when your child is actively potty training. Children should wear appropriate clothing and footwear for outdoor play. We play outside year-round above 25 degrees Fahrenheit and under 90 degrees Fahrenheit. Parents should check their child's mailbox on a daily basis.

# **Preschool Classes**

**Dragonflies** - Our Dragonfly class serves children ages three to four years old. Parents should supply a sippy cup, multiple changes of clothing, a helmet for riding trikes and bikes, a blanket for rest time and diapers or pull-ups if not using the centers. Children may still be working on potty training in this classroom. Please let the teachers know when your child is actively potty training. Children should wear appropriate clothing and footwear for outdoor play. We play outside year-round above 25 degrees Fahrenheit and under 90 degrees Fahrenheit. Parents should check their child's mailbox on a daily basis.

**Fireflies** - Our Firefly class serves children ages four to five years old. Parents should supply a sippy cup, multiple changes of clothing, a helmet for riding trikes and bikes, and a blanket for rest time. Children may still be working on potty training in this classroom. Please let the teachers know when your child is actively potty training. Children should wear appropriate clothing and footwear for outdoor play. We play outside year-round above 25 degrees Fahrenheit and under 90 degrees Fahrenheit. Parents should check their child's mailbox on a daily basis. The Firefly Classroom will refer to Eastern Lancaster County School's readiness assessments to properly prepare students for Kindergarten.

**PreK Counts/Butterflies** - Our Butterfly class serves children ages three to five years old who qualify financially. PA PreK Counts is designed for children who are between age 3 until entry into Kindergarten and live in families earning up to 300% of the federal poverty level. PreK Counts runs with the Eastern and Lancaster County School District calendar, including snow days, delays and early dismissals and operates Monday through Fridays from 9am to 3pm. Parents should supply a change of clothing, a helmet for riding trikes and bikes, and a blanket for rest time. Children may still be working on potty training in this classroom. Please let the teachers know when your child is actively potty training. Each year PreK Counts students will receive a free hearing, vision and dental screening. Children should wear appropriate clothing and footwear for outdoor play. We play outside year-round above 25 degrees Fahrenheit and under 90 degrees Fahrenheit. Parents should check their child's mailbox on a daily basis. The Butterfly Classroom will refer to Eastern Lancaster County School's readiness assessments to properly prepare students for Kindergarten.

# NHELC PreK Counts - Flexible Instruction Plan FIP (PreK Counts Only)

New Holland Early Learning Center PreK Counts program has developed the following Flexible Instruction Plan to allow the program to meet PreK Counts requirements of 180 days of instruction within the school year. Input was provided by Policy, IU-13, and NHELC staff. The Flexible Instruction Plan is designed to address the following situations:

#### • District Act 80 In-service Days

We Follow Eastern Lancaster County and their act 80 days. When school districts are not offering services to students at school because of Act 80 days, New Holland Early Learning Center will provide at-home learning opportunities through asynchronous activities.

- Since most parents are working we will use Asynchronous at-home learning activities, shared with families through email to families or given personally to parents when they pick up the children.
- Platforms
  - Zoom will be used for delivering virtual learning if needed.
  - The Creative Curriculum will be used to provide at-home learning activities using the Lesson plans that the teacher is using.

#### • Inclement weather building closure

- In case of inclement weather, NHELC will follow ELANCO school district's procedures.
  - If the district pivots to a flexible instruction day, NHELC will also implement the FIP.
  - If the district has a "no school day" and instead uses a "snow make-up day," NHELC will also not use the Flexible Instruction Plan for that day and will also have in-person instruction on the "snow makeup day."
  - NHELC will take attendance on FIP days and provide evidence of FIP activities being carried out including, but not limited to, email, picture of activity, or receipt of activity sheets.

#### • Non-weather-related building closure

 If the NHELC building is closed due to flood, fire, no heat/electric/water, building-wide quarantine, or other unsafe building conditions, NHELC may choose to implement the FIP, depending on the circumstance.

In developing NHELC Flexible Instruction Plan the following things were considered:

#### • Support for Families & Ensuring Equitable Access

- Parents will be surveyed to determine technology/email needs. This will normally happen during registration.
- Families without internet access will be supported in the following ways:
  - When possible, teacher will provide materials and resources in advance of the at-home learning day.
  - Teacher will send activities through email.
  - Families may pick up learning activities at the school.
- During registration, families will receive and acknowledge receipt of the NHELC Patron handbook which includes the FIP. The FIP will be reviewed with families during this time.
- Children with special needs will be provided with accessible learning experiences at their developmental levels.

#### • Support for Education Staff

- Prior to the beginning of the school year, teachers and assistant teachers will receive training in how to effectively use the Creative Curriculum Cloud, and Zoom, if needed.
- Ongoing support for the use of technology and expectations for implementation of NHELC's Flexible Instruction Plan will be provided by Director/or Assistant Director throughout the school year as needed.

#### • Virtual Learning Content

- The program's research-based curriculum, Creative Curriculum, will be the basis for all instruction and learning experiences.
- Learning experiences align with the PA Learning Standards for Early Childhood and include all learning domains.

#### • Attendance Tracking & Documenting Student Learning

- Attendance will be tracked through the Procare platform
  - Attendance settings in Procare will be changed for at-home learning days.
  - A child will be considered present if any of the following occur:
    - A child attends a large or small group Zoom session (when available)
    - The family acknowledges completion of an at home learning activity
    - The family submits documentation of the child's participation in an at home learning activity by texting or emailing the child's teacher a picture, video, or description of the activity.
  - Teachers will review at-home learning experiences. Teachers will assess student learning using the Teaching Strategies Gold Objectives and document children's learning and growth.

# **Elementary Classes**

**Katydids** - Our Katydids class serves children who are enrolled in kindergarten through 4th grade. Parents should supply a change of clothing, a helmet for riding bikes and a back pack. Children should wear appropriate clothing and footwear for outdoor play. We play outside year-round above 25 degrees Fahrenheit and under 90 degrees Fahrenheit. Parents should check their child's mailbox on a daily basis.

**Discovery Club** - Our school age summer camp program serves children who have completed kindergarten through 4th grade. Parents should supply a change of clothing, a helmet for riding bikes and a bag for papers and work to go back and forth between home and the Early Learning Center. We play outside year-round above 25 degrees Fahrenheit and under 90 degrees Fahrenheit. Parents should check their child's mailbox on a daily basis.

# **Birthdays**

If your child wishes to celebrate their birthday at the center, please talk to the classroom teachers about scheduling and food allergies. If you are handing out invitations for a party outside of the center, we ask that you hand them out to your child's entire class to avoid hurt feelings.

#### **Holiday Celebrations**

We celebrate various holidays in our classroom. Your child may dress up for their class' Fall Harvest parties. We ask that costumes are child friendly, nothing scary or aggressive.

#### Naptime

Children in the infant class are on their own schedules and can sleep for as long as desired. Children in the Toddler classes and 3-year-old Preschool class are encouraged to rest from 1pm - 3pm. Children in our PreK programs rest from 1pm- 2pm. Staff continue supervising the children and are available for rubbing backs and trips to the bathroom, etc.

#### Food Program/CACFP

Breakfast is served daily from 7:00 -7:30 am for preschool and elementary classes and 7:30 - 8:00 am for our infant and toddler class'. Lunch is served daily from 11:00- 11:30 am and snack is served daily from 3:00- 3:30 pm. School age children receive their snack when they arrive at 4:00 p.m. Menus are posted in each classroom and on our website. We provide reasonable accommodations on a case by case basis for those on special diets due to allergies and religious beliefs. Mealtimes are important social times. Teachers eat with the children modeling appropriate table manners. Children are encouraged to become self-sufficient and to use appropriate table manners as well. Our goal is to provide a well-balanced, diverse, tasty meal in an atmosphere where they will want to try all the foods we offer. We follow guidelines set out by the Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP) for serving meals and snacks and we are in compliance with the following: "All meals served to children under the Child and Adult Care Food Program are served at no separate at charge regardless of race, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation, color, national origin (including Limited English Proficiency), ancestry, religious creed, disability, age, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity. There is no discrimination in admission policies, meal service or the use of the facilities.

USDA, Director, Office of Civil rights, Room 325-W, Whitten Building, 1400 Independence Avenue, SW Washington DC 20250-9410. USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer."

# **Family Communication**

We encourage families to be involved in their child's educational experience and have an open-door policy. You may stop in and visit in your child's classroom at any time. Newly enrolled families will be invited to a getting to know you meeting with the office staff. The teachers provide a monthly newsletter during the school year with the theme of the month, activities and any holidays or seasons that they may be learning about. In addition, our infant and toddler classrooms send home daily care sheets so that you are aware of what has happened during your child's day. Teachers are available at the beginning and end of the day to discuss anything of concern. Each classroom has a parent information area where important information is posted. Each class also has a dry erase board that is updated with daily activities and upcoming events. Incident reports are sent home with each child when they have an accident or behavior occurrence. Please be sure to keep up to date with us on Facebook and at www.creatingcommunityforkids.com.

#### **Assessments/Evaluations**

After your child has been at the center for 45 days their teacher will perform an initial assessment. This helps them lead your child through the next stages of their development. In addition, evaluations are performed in February and May. Parent conferences are offered in November and May. Parents will receive a written report of the observations at these conferences. If a child needs additional intervention the Assistant Director will assist families in the next steps.

If a child has an Individualized Education Program (IEP), an Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP) or another individualized plan please provide the documentation to the Assistant Director so we can work with you in meeting their goals. If you are beginning this process or renewing your plan, please invite the Assistant Director and Lead Teacher to the meetings.

#### **Community Resources**

Community resources are available inside the entrance and in the parent information area near the office. These resources include various organizations that are able to assist in the following areas: academic and behavioral health, family support, financial assistance and more. If you need further assistance, see the office staff or the Pastor.

#### **Diapering and Potty Training**

For the convenience of our families, NHELC initiated the Cuties Care All Inclusive Diapering Product Supply Program in 2014. This means that for all of our infants, toddlers and potty trainers, Cuties Brand products will be provided for use at the Center. If we are unable to purchase cuties brand, we will substitute. If your child requires a specific brand of products, please provide the center with the supplies your child will need.

The Center will support you during potty training. All children in our older toddler and preschool classes are taken to the bathroom at regular times throughout the day to help them develop an interest in using the potty. When you decide it is time for your child to begin the process of potty training, please speak to your classroom teacher about the methods you use at home so that your child has consistency between home and the Center. We also ask that you provide multiple changes of clothing including underwear during the learning time.

# Emergencies

The New Holland Early Learning Center is prepared for all types of emergencies. Depending on the circumstances, we will follow one of the following procedures:

- **Immediate Evacuation**: Students are evacuated to a safe area on the grounds of the facility in the event of a fire.
- **In-place Sheltering**: Sudden occurrences of weather or material hazards may require taking shelter inside an interior room of the building.
- **Permanent evacuation**: Total evacuation of the facility may become necessary if there is a danger in the area. In this case, children will be taken to our relocation facility at Goodville Mutual Casualty Co. or Yoder's Country Market.
- Modified Operation: May include cancellation/postponement of rescheduling of normal activities. These actions are normally taken in the event of severe weather or facility problems that may make it unsafe for students to attend the Center.

**Notifying parents and guardians:** In the event of Modified operations, a notice will go out via text message, email and if a weather alert WGAL closings. It will also be listed on our website and social media. In the event of evacuation, parents and guardians will be notified via text message and email once the children are safe. Phone calls will be made in the event that children need to be picked up in a different location.

#### If we cannot contact a parent or emergency contact, we reserve the right to notify the New Holland Police

#### **Staff Training and Clearances**

Upon hiring at New Holland Early Learning Center all prospective staff complete the following child care clearances: Child Abuse History, State Police Clearances and FBI Clearances and National Sex Offender Registry Verification. All staff are trained as mandated reporters and take additional trainings in First Aid and Pediatric/Adult CPR, Water Safety, Fire Safety, Civil Rights, CACFP, Pennsylvania Stars, Ages and Stages screening tool, Teaching Strategies and Creative Curriculum, Environmental Rating Scale Classroom Assessments, Positive Interaction, Special Needs, Diversity, Language, STEM and Social Emotional Health. All staff are mandated reporters of suspected child abuse and neglect.

# **Our Policies**

#### **Pictures and Videos**

We strive to provide a healthy and safe environment for each child in our care. Throughout the day we take pictures and videos of activities in the classroom, on the playground and on field trips. These pictures give families a glimpse into their child's day. We will post them in the center. With your permission, we may use your child's photo in brochures and advertising, on our social media and on our website.

# Television, Video and Computer Policy

American Academy of pediatrics recommends that children under the age of 2 not have any "screen" time. Children 2-5 should be limited to 1 hour per day. Therefore, we encourage our teachers to limit any screen time in the class. For all ages, including school age children, we ask that <u>no electronics</u> be brought into the center including phones. Technology may be used as a teaching tool in the classroom.

# **Policies Concerning Child Custody**

If a child's custody has been determined by a court, the child's legal guardian will provide the Center with a copy of the Custody agreement. If the custody has not been determined by a court or we are not provided with the agreement, we are required to release the child to any legal guardian with proof of guardianship.

# **Policy on Toys**

Our time here at the center is organized around learning. When we do have free time, we have plenty of toys to share. Please encourage your child to leave all toys at home. Toy guns, weapons and aggressive toys are not permitted at the center.

# Policy on Behavior, Suspension and Expulsion

New Holland Early Learning Center staff strive to provide safe classrooms for your child; physically, socially, and emotionally. Our goal is to develop a positive relationship with each child and their families. Our teachers help children identify emotions and teach skills to develop healthy friendships, self-regulation, and problem-solving. Our PreK classrooms use a social-emotional curriculum. Positive guidance and classroom management strategies are used, including providing positive feedback to children, and teaching classroom rules. These rules help children learn what is expected and how they will keep everyone safe.

Staff will model appropriate behaviors and work to prevent problems before they arise. If a child disregards a classroom rule, the staff will take the following steps: State the expected behavior clearly in a positive manner, ask the child to state the rule, give the child a choice of an appropriate behavior, help the child problem solve, redirect the child to another activity or area of the room to calm down and refocus, depending upon the situation the office staff may be asked to assist. No method used will be degrading, demeaning, frightening, or involve any type of physical punishment.

Occasionally, young children present behaviors that are not only challenging but also dangerous. Staff are trained to help children who exhibit these behaviors. They help the child learn to communicate their wants and/or needs, and to keep the child safe while they calm down. Staff will contact families about incidents in a timely manner, and work with families to develop strategies to reduce those behaviors.

At times, a child may need additional interventions to reduce challenging behaviors and to learn appropriate social and emotional skills. When these behaviors persist and/or are dangerous, staff will work with the family to develop a behavior plan to assist the child, staff, and family. Staff will implement the behavior plan and communicate with the family regularly to discuss progress and modify the plan as needed. If appropriate, Our Assistant Director will support the family in making a referral for mental health services and/or early intervention evaluation.

Rarely, a child may engage in behavior that poses a significant physical risk to self or others. In such instances, the program or family may contact the PreK Counts/STARS Specialist to assist with additional supports or recommendations until additional services are in place to support the child's safe participation in the classroom. As we work with children with behavioral needs, after all other avenues of helping the child and only in extreme cases when a child places either themselves, other children or the teacher in danger, we will pursue a possible suspension or expulsion.

#### **Inclusion Policy**

We partner with the office of Child Development and Early Learning (OCDEL) and Early Intervention (EI) in providing Early Childhood education to infants, toddlers, preschool and School age children with varying physical, academic or behavioral health needs. We will walk with families through physical, academic and behavioral health challenges, offering our knowledge and assistance in the matters that they face. We strive to meet all children's needs. Our Assistant Director is available to accompany parents to appointments when requested.

El is based on the philosophy that young children with additional needs should receive their services and support in natural settings where children would be if they did not have a disability. This is beneficial for all children. This is grounded firmly in the Individuals with Disabilities Act (IDEA). IDEA requires all states to provide services for preschool aged children with disabilities and additional needs in the least restrictive environment.

Children eligible for EI services will receive an Individualized Family Support Plan (IFSP) for ages birth to age three or an Individualized Education Plan (IEP) for ages three through school age. These are developed to meet each child's individual needs. This is a written plan and is developed by a team, including the child's parents and various professionals. These plans reflect the child's unique needs and strengths. The practice of enrolling children with developmental delays in typical environments is often referred to as Inclusion. In order for a classroom to be an inclusive early childhood setting, centers may not restrict enrollment based upon ability. In addition, classes should not be composed predominantly of children participating in EI.

Upon enrollment into a new preschool, the child's team, including the teacher, should meet to discuss strategies to make the transition into the classroom successful. Strategies may include adapting the environment, individualizing the curriculum and identifying the best techniques to use for the child's success. Communication strategies between the center staff, parents and additional team members should be determined. The EI staff will work with our classroom staff by educating the teachers and recommending possible changes to the environment. They will support staff as they work together to integrate targeted skills for children into everyday routines and activities. EI staff are available to assist in problem solving and can provide additional resources to support the children and staff.

# **Policy on Diversity**

At the New Holland Early Learning Center, we strive to be a diverse community. The center celebrates and welcomes families from all ethnicities, cultures, beliefs, and all social and economic backgrounds as well as children with varying needs. Our cook strives to provide varying ethnic meals as well as children's favorites. We embrace the many cultures among us and welcome the opportunity to learn about many countries. Children whose first language is not English will be supported in the classroom by using their primary language, gestures, communication devices and/or sign language as needed.

# Shaken Baby Syndrome (Abusive Head Trauma) Prevention Policy

This policy is designed to prevent the possibility of abusive head trauma during care. **Shaken Baby Syndrome, another form of Abusive head trauma**, is a medical term used to describe the injuries that can result if a baby is shaken violently. It can occur in children up to 5 years of age; however, infants less than one year are at greater risk of injury. Infants and young children, whose neck muscles are not fully developed and whose heads are larger in comparison to their bodies are especially susceptible to head trauma caused by any type of forceful or sudden shaking, with or without impact. Damage can occur in as little as 5 seconds. The younger the baby, the greater the risk of harm.

Shaken baby syndrome can lead to serious conditions including: Brain damage, problems with memory and attention, cerebral palsy; Blindness or hearing loss; Intellectual, speech or learning disabilities; and Developmental delays.

The signs and symptoms of shaken baby syndrome or head trauma include: seizures, bruises, lack of appetite, vomiting, difficulty sucking or swallowing, lack of smiling or vocalizing, stiffness, inability to lift the head, difficulty staying awake, a change in consciousness; trouble breathing, unequal pupil size, inability to focus or track movement, and irritability.

#### **Teachers Emergency Response**

If a child presents any of the above symptoms or you suspect a baby has suffered abusive head trauma:

- Call 911, call the parent/guardian and inform the director/office staff.
- Report the abuse within 24 hours or less as required by law.

#### **Injury Prevention and Education**

Infant crying is a normal behavior. Caregivers develop strategies to manage stress and learn appropriate responses to a crying child. This includes being self-aware and noticing when they may become frustrated and need a break. In addition, all teachers are educated on Shaken Baby Syndrome and Abusive head trauma. They learn strategies to manage their stress, identify what they are feeling, help children identify what they are feeling and help the children find ways to calm themselves. Parents/guardians, caregivers and coworkers can share calming strategies that are successful with each child in the home as well as in the center.

#### **Strategies for Caregivers and Parents**

A child is usually shaken out of frustration, often when the child is persistently crying. The following strategies may work some of the time; but sometimes nothing will comfort a crying child.

#### Do:

• Hand the child to another caregiver or place the child somewhere safe in the classroom (or home) and call the office (or a neighbor) for support; take deep breaths and count to 10.

• Check to see if the baby's needs are being met. See if their diaper needs changed. Give the baby a bottle. If the baby willingly takes the bottle, feed them slowly stopping to burp often. Do not force the baby to eat.

• Check for signs of illness and call the parent if you suspect the child is sick.

• Give baby a pacifier. Hold the baby close against your body and breathe calmly and slowly. Gently rock the baby using slow, rhythmic movements.

• Sing to the baby or play soft, soothing music. Use "white noise" or rhythmic sounds that mimic the constant whir of noise in the womb

- Hold the baby on its side or stomach position to help with digestion. Babies should
- always be placed on their backs to sleep.
- Take the baby for a walk indoors or outside for a ride in the stroller.
- Be patient: let the baby cry it out if necessary.

**Never:** shake a child, drop a child, throw a child into the air or into a crib, chair, or car seat. Never push a child into any object including walls, doors, and furniture and never hit a child's head, directly or indirectly.

# **Illness Policy**

New Holland Early Learning Center is not able to provide the care required for sick children.

**Fevers**: A parent will be called to pick up their child if their fever is 101.0 degrees or above. Child must be fever free for 24 hours before returning.

**Diarrhea**: A parent will be called to pick up their child if they have diarrhea three times in a day while at the center. They may not return until they are symptom free for 24 hours.

**Vomiting**: A parent will be called to pick up their child if they vomit while at the center. They may not return until they are symptom free for 24 hours.

**Contagious Illnesses**: A child needs to be seen by a doctor and have a note that it is safe for them to return to childcare.

We reserve the right to deny care for a child upon arrival if the child is ill. If a child is too sick to participate in classroom activities, they are too sick to be at the center.

If we cannot make contact with a parent or emergency contact within an hour of being notified that a child is ill, we will need to notify the New Holland Police. Please be sure to have emergency phone numbers where someone can be reached and updated regularly.

# **Policies on Reporting and Preventing Injuries**

Incident reports are filled out and sent home when a child is injured at the center. These reports are documented at the center and reviewed for commonalities. If it is determined that an area in the center, playground or classroom is unsafe a plan is created to remedy the situation.

# **Parent Behavior Policy**

New Holland Early Learning Center encourages interaction within the Early Learning Center (ELC) community. We believe that children benefit when the relationship between home and school is a positive one. As role models and for the safety and well-being of our children; staff, parents, and other visitors are expected to behave appropriately when on the ELC premises. Parents and other visitors are expected to show respect and concern for others and support the respectful guidelines by setting a good example in their own speech and behavior towards all members of the ELC community. The vast majority of parents and others visiting the ELC

set a good example. However, this policy addresses those rare occasions when behavior is inappropriate or unacceptable.

#### Unacceptable behaviors

Aggression, verbal and/or physical abuse towards staff, fellow parents or children is unacceptable, no matter what the circumstances are. Examples of behaviors that are considered serious and unacceptable and will not be tolerated include:

- A raised voice, shouting or inappropriate language, either in person or over the telephone.
- Inappropriate posting on Social Networking sites deemed as bullying.
- Speaking in an aggressive/threatening tone.
- Physical intimidation, physical threats and/or physical aggression.
- Derogatory, racist or sexist comments.

This is not an exhaustive list but seeks to provide illustrations of such behavior. Unacceptable behavior will generally result in the police being informed of the incident.

#### Action of staff when facing unacceptable behaviors

The ELC expects and requires its staff to behave professionally in difficult situations and attempt to defuse the situation where possible, seeking the involvement of the office staff and/or New Holland Police Department.

#### Procedure to be followed

If a parent behaves in an unacceptable way towards a member of the ELC community, the Director or appropriate senior staff member will seek to resolve the situation through discussion and mediation. When all procedures have been exhausted, and aggression or intimidation continue, or where there is an extreme act of violence, a parent may be prohibited, by the Director, from the ELC premises for a period of time.

#### Incidents involving others' children

If an incident has happened at the ELC involving your child, please do not approach or call other parents or post comments on social media sites. We ask that parents come in and talk to the ELC office staff. We will deal with any incident by following the Early Learning Center's policies and procedures. Parents may not talk to other children about an incident at any time.

#### **Transition Plan**

When children are transitioning from class to class and eventually to a school age program, our staff has set guidelines in helping children make this transition smoothly. Below is our plan:

#### Infant class

- 2 weeks before moving up send out moving up notices notifying families of upcoming changes in classrooms.
- 5 days before moving from the infant class each child moving up will spend one hour, in the morning, in the toddler class. One teacher in the infant classroom will switch places with a toddler teacher to make the transition smoother.
- 4 days before moving from the infant class each child moving up will spend two hours, in the morning, in the toddler class. One teacher in the infant classroom will switch places with a toddler teacher to make the transition smoother.
- 3 days before moving from the infant class each child moving up will spend three hours, in the morning, in the toddler class. No teachers will switch classrooms.

- 2 days before moving from the infant class each child moving up will spend the entire morning in the class. After lunch they will go back to the infant class.
- The day before moving from the infant class each child moving up will spend the entire morning in the class, through lunch until naptime. At naptime they will return to the infant classroom.

#### **Toddler and Preschool classrooms**

- 2 weeks before moving up send out moving up notices to parents notifying them of the upcoming change in classrooms.
- 3 days before transition have a combined free play in the new classroom with the existing group of children.
- 2 days before transition have a combined activity in the new classroom with the existing group of children.
- 1 day before the transition the children will spend approximately one hour with the new teachers in the classroom setting.

#### Prekindergarten classroom

- Read Aloud by Kindergarten Teacher or Principal.
- Pre-K and Pre-K Counts teachers discuss Kindergarten with children and read books related to Kindergarten skills.

#### School Age classroom

- Talk to children in the classroom about safety at home, adults you can contact and how to react in certain situations.
- Provide Families with the brochure *Transitioning Children from Childcare to Selfcare*.

#### **Program information**

#### Insurance

The Center carries an accident policy while the child is attending or participating in a supervised activity of the Center.

#### Discrimination

#### Non-Discrimination Statement

We do not discriminate on the basis of race, sex, color, national origin (including Limited English Proficiency), ancestry, religious creed, disability, age, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity. This facility shall make reasonable efforts to accommodate applicants, clients and employees with physical or mental limitations.

NHELC, being an Equal Opportunity Employer, gives fair and equal treatment to all employees and applicants for employment regardless of race, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation, color, national origin (including Limited English Proficiency), ancestry, religious creed, disability, age, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity. Our non-discrimination policies are extended to but not limited to recruitment advertising, hiring, training, promotion, transfer, rates of pay, and termination.

Anyone who believes they have been discriminated against may file a complaint of discrimination with:

New Holland Early Learning Center 18 Western Ave New Holland Pa 17557

US Dept. of Health & Human Services Office of Civil Rights Suite 372, Public Ledger Bldg. 105 S. Independence Mall West Philadelphia, PA 19106-9111

Department of Public Welfare Bureau of Equal Opportunity Room 521, Health & Welfare Building PO Box 2675 Harrisburg, PA 17105 Bureau of Equal Opportunity Central Field Units Building 56, Patton House Pouch A Harrisburg State Hospital Grounds Harrisburg, PA 17105-1300

Penn. Human Relations Commission Harrisburg Regional Office Riverfront Office Center 1101 S. Front St, 5th Floor Harrisburg, PA 17104

Updated and Adopted on January 20, 2024